
Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to the Planning Coordinator 503-864-2221 ext. 517 or rvargas@daytonoregon.gov. Page 1 of 2 

 
 AGENDA 

DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

DATE:      THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2024  
TIME:       6:30 PM 
PLACE:     DAYTON CITY HALL ANNEX – 408 FERRY STREET, DAYTON, OREGON 
VIRTUAL:  ZOOM MEETING – ORS 192.670/HB 2560 
 

You may join the Planning Commission Meeting online via Zoom at: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86765043025  

   
Dayton – Rich in History . . . Envisioning Our Future 

 
 
ITEM     DESCRIPTION                                                                                                             PAGE # 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. June 13, 2024         1-3 
2. September 12, 2024        4-6 
3. October 10, 2024        7-9 

E. PUBLIC HEARING 
1.  Text amendments to the Dayton Land Use Development  11-16  

 Code to implement statute changes passed by the State  
Legislature during the 2023 and 2024 sessions (HB 3395  
and SB 1537). – Staff Report 

i. Exhibit A: Proposed code amendments with changes  17-49 
 tracked 

ii. Exhibit B: Published Public Notice     51 
F. OTHER BUSINESS 
G. ADJOURN                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 
Posted:  November 8, 2024     
By:  Rocio Vargas, City Recorder/Planning Coordinator 
 

 
 
 

  

mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86765043025


 

Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with disabilities. A 
request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to the Planning Coordinator 503-864-2221 or rvargas@daytonoregon.gov      Page 2 of 2 

 

NEXT MEETING DATES 
Planning Commission Meeting December 12, 2024 (if needed) 

Planning Commission Meeting January 9, 2024 (if needed) 
 

Virtually via Zoom and in Person, City Hall Annex, 408 Ferry Street, Dayton, Oregon 
 

The public is strongly encouraged to relay concerns and comments to the Commission of any other 
topic in one of the following ways: 

• Email - at any time up to 5 pm the day of the meeting to rvargas@daytonoregon.gov . The Chair will 
read the comments emailed to the Planning Coordinator. 

• Appear in person – If you would like to speak during public comment, please sign up on the sign-in 
sheet located on the table when you enter the City Hall Annex.  

• Appear by Telephone only – please sign up prior to the meeting by emailing the Planning 
Coordinator at rvargas@daytonoregon.gov the chat function is not available when calling by phone 
into Zoom. 

• Appear Virtually via Zoom - once in the meeting send a chat directly to the Planning Coordinator 
Rocio Vargas, use the raise hand feature in Zoom to request to speak during public comment, you 
must give the Planning Coordinator your First and Last Name, Address and Contact 
Information (email or phone number) before you are allowed to speak. When it is your turn, the 
Chair will announce your name and unmute your mic.  

 
 
 

mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov


MINUTES 
DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION  

June 13, 2024 
 

Dayton Commissioners Present:  Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson  
Dave Mackin, Vice-Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton 
Katelyn Van Genderen 
      
      

Dayton Commissioners Absent:  Tim Parsons  
 

Dayton Staff Present:   Curt Fisher, City Planner 
     Rocio Vargas, City Recorder/Planning Coordinator 
     Director 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Ann-Marie Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:30pm all those present gave the pledge 
of allegiance.  

B. APPROVAL OF ORDER OF AGENDA 

No Changes.  

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

None.  

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Commissioner Mackin moved to approve the minutes for March 13, 2024, and May 9, 2024. 
Seconded by Commissioner Hallyburton. Motion carried with Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and 
Van Genderen voting aye.  

E. PUBLIC HEARING 

Chair Anderson opened the public meeting at 6:33pm to consider Text Amendments to Chapter 
7.4.1 of the Dayton Land Use Development Code to update the standards for the place men of 
temporary signs.  

Curt Fisher, City Planner, presented the staff report.  

No public comment.  

Chair closed the Public Hearing at 6:38pm. 

Commissioner Hallyburton inquired about a typo on page 15. 

1



Commissioner Van Genderen inquired about section 7.4.101.04. 

Chair Anderson inquired about A-board signs being allowed under temporary signs description. 

Commissioner Hallyburton inquired about excluding A board signs as a temporary sign in the 
Central Business Overlay Zone. 

Commissioner Van Genderen asked about the 30-day calendar year language and how it would be 
determined. 

There was a discussion on how the 30-day per calendar year is subject to complaint driven 
enforcement.  

Further language use and editing was discussed. 

Commissioner Hallyburton moved to adopt a revised staff report with the following 
revisions section 7.4.101.03 definitions add a definition of flag read by the Chair; 
Section7.4.101.04 Prohibited Signs, second sentence would be moved to a 
subsection; Section 7.4.101.06 Non-Conforming Signs subsection (A)  will remain as 
formally worded; Section 7.4.102.05 Design, Construction and Maintenance, 
subsection (E) will remain as formally worded; and recommend the City Council to 
approve the revised amendments. Seconded by Commissioner Van Genderen. 
Motion carried with Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and Van Genderen voting aye.  

 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. Urban Renewal Agency Plan Presentation 

Dave Rucklos, Tourism and Economic Development Director prefaced the Urban Renewal 
presentation for Elaine Howard.  

Elaine Howard presented information on Urban Renewal. 

There was a discussion on how the Urban Renewal Plan would benefit the City, and how the 
priorities would be set. 

There was a discussion on the broadness of the projects and the purpose of it being, is to conform 
to the comprehensive plan.  

Commissioner Van Genderen moved that the Dayton Planning Commission adopt 
the facts findings in this memo and Section XII of the draft Urban Renewal Plan as 
finding that the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan conforms with the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend that the Dayton City Council adopt the 
proposed plan. Seconded by Commissioner Hallyburton. Motion carried with 
Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and Van Genderen voting aye.  

 

G. ADJOURNMENT  

2



There being no further business to discuss, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:47pm.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

    APPROVED BY COMMISSION November 14, 2024. 
     As Written  As Amended 

By: 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

     ______________________________________________________ 
     Ann-Marie Anderson, Planning Commission Chair 

3



MINUTES 
DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION  

September 12, 2024 
 

Dayton Commissioners Present:  Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson  
Dave Mackin, Vice-Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton, via Zoom 
Katelyn Van Genderen 
      
      

Dayton Commissioners Absent:  Tim Parsons  
 

Dayton Staff Present:   Curt Fisher, City Planner 
     Rocio Vargas, City Recorder/Planning Coordinator 
      

 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
Chairperson Ann-Marie Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:29 pm. Chairperson noted that 
Commissioner Hallyburton was present via Zoom and Commissioners Mackin, and Van Genderen 
were present in person.  
 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
No changes.  
 

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
None.  
 

D. WORK SESSION 
1. Planning Commission Review of Various Amendments to Comply with HB3395 and 

SB1537 
 
Curt Fisher, City Planner presented the staff report and explained what changes HB3395 and 
SB1537 will require of the Dayton Land Use and Development Code. 

HB3395 requires cities with population between 2,500-10,000to adopt ordinances to allow duplex 
on any lot zoned residential that allows single-family detached housing. Requires local 
governments to approve Single Room Occupancy (SRO) developments. Disapproves any standards 
that make these developments difficult. 

SB1537 provided mandatory adjustments to city code and procedures reducing the need for public 
hearings for certain land use applications.  

Planning Commission reviewed the proposed changes to Chapter 7 DLUDC. 

Commissioner Hallyburton asked for clarification on pg. 7 for which type of density. Suggested to 
keep “lots” versus “unit” for clarification.  

4



Commissioner Hallyburton inquired about the reduction of density in the R2 zone. Advocated for 
changing It to 8 instead of 6 minimum for manufactured homes.  

City Planner agreed and asked commissioners if they wanted to change or needed more time to 
review this suggested change. 

Vice-Chairperson Mackin that he would like to obtain a visual of what 6 to 8 units would look like on 
an acre. 

There was a discussion on having a maximum or no maximum units per acre of manufactured 
homes. This issue will be revisited in the next review.  

City Planner explained the suggested changes for the CR zone. 

Commissioner Van Genderen suggested renumbering the sections for continuity.  

Commissioner Hallyburton inquired if the SB1537 has been codified, if not suggested adding the 
year next to it on page 28. 

City Planner explained why the R3 zone was skipped in the update, considering that the R2 overlaps 
with R3 uses. Suggested to merge R3 into R2 since there is only one in the Dayton map. 
 
Commissioner Van Genderen inquired fi there is any other vacant land labeled R3 
 
Commissioner Mackin expressed concern on removing R3 would not promote affordable housing 
and multifamily homes. 
 
Commissioner Hallyburton agreed that getting rid of R3 would not set aside an area in the UGB for 
only multifamily homes. 
 
City Planner stated that he will update the changes the Planning Commission requested. 
 
Commissioner Van Genderen asked if this would be set to vote on at the next meeting.  
 
City Planner suggested another work session before taking a vote. 
 
All agreed.  
 

E. OTHER BUSINESS 
Chairperson Anderson asked to update the Planning Commission page to remove Tim Parson.  
 
Rocio Vargas, Planning Coordinator stated that Mr. Parsons said he could come back, but if he 
couldn’t continue eh would have to put it in writing. 
 
City Planner invited members of Planning Commission to join the Transportation Plan Update 
Committee.   
 

F. ADJOURN  
There being no further business to discuss meeting adjourned at 7:50 pm.  
 

5



Respectfully submitted: 

 

    APPROVED BY COMMISSION November 14, 2024 
     As Written  As Amended 

By: 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

     ______________________________________________________ 
     Ann-Marie Anderson, Planning Commission Chair 

 

6



MINUTES 
DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION  

October 10, 2024 
 

Dayton Commissioners Present:  Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson  
Dave Mackin, Vice-Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton  
Katelyn Van Genderen 
      
      

Dayton Commissioners Absent:   
 

Dayton Staff Present:   Curt Fisher, City Planner 
     Rocio Vargas, City Recorder/Planning Coordinator 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairperson Ann-Marie Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. Chairperson Anderson 
noted that Commissioners Mackin, Hallyburton and Van Genderen were present in person. 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

No changes. 

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

None.  

D. WORK SESSION  
1. LA 2024-02 Code updates to comply with HB 3395 and SB 1537 

Curt Fisher, City Planner stated that the changes suggested at the last meeting were 
implemented in the current report. He stated that the purpose of this meeting was to allow the 
commission more time to review the changes.  

City Planner stated that as the commission requested R3 zones were maintained. The density 
standards for the R2 zones are available for review. He stated that he took the developing 
comprehensive plan as reference to make updates to the code. 

There was a discussion on the what the maximum density should be. 

Vice-Chairperson stated that he has given thought to the maximum density and considers that 
the character of Dayton should be maintained. 

Net versus gross density was discussed to include an appropriate definition in the Dayton 
Municipal Code. 

Net and gros density was discussed to be defined for each residential zone. 

Opportunities that will be created with the amendment conforming to HB 3395 and SB 1537 
were discussed.  

7



Commissioner Van Genderen inquired about any height limits on housing in the residential 
zones.  

Housing types that could be built in the residential zones based on the density requirements 
was discussed.  

Commissioner Hallyburton stated that in the UGB area the housing types would not necessarily 
need to conform to the characteristics of the downtown area and that it could evolve to fit in 
overtime.  

Vice-Chairperson Mackin inquired about changing the land division from 7 to 11 maximum per 
lot.  

City Planner stated that there is no pressure to set a maximum at this time. The goal is to allow 
developers to increase their density on smaller developments and focus on the minimum lot size 
allowed. 

City Planner stated that the units per acre standard would be applied to larger developments. 

Commissioner Van Genderen commented on the density the project proposal in the Hwy18 By-
pass development for context on what density could look like. 

City Planner proposed changing the lots per net acre with a 5-lot minimum. He stated a 
maximum density of seven units per acre would create lots measuring 6,000sft. He inquired if 
there was interest on making the change the density standard in addition to the minimum lot 
size or reword to seven lots per acre.  

Chairperson Anderson inquired if the land division would affect the type of housing. 

City Planner stated that the new standard would apply to divide the land and crate new lots, and 
not applied for construction. He stated that the two types of applications would be, one for land 
division and the other development on a single lot creating a subdivision.  

There was a discussion about the existing mobile home park and determine its density and how 
that helps visualize the new standards established in the current update.  

Chairperson Anderson expressed the need to meet the wants of the population and the need for 
affordable housing. 

City Planner stated that the Housing Capacity Analysis is coming soon that would answer the 
questions of the wants and needs of Dayton.  

There was a discussion on what the outcome of this update could look like in actual 
development and how the Comprehensive Housing Plan update will apply.  

City Planner resumed the changes discussed for the DMC. 

E. OTHER BUSINESS 

None. 

F. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:40pm. 

8



Respectfully submitted: 

 

    APPROVED BY PLANNING COMMISSION November 14, 2024. 
       As Written  As Amended 

By: 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

     ______________________________________________________ 
     Ann-Marie Anderson, Planning Commission Chair 

 
      

 

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

10



LA 2024-02 Staff Report Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT 

LA 2024-02 PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Hearing Date: November 14, 2024 

Subject: Text amendments to the Dayton Land Use Development Code to implement statute 

changes passed by the State Legislature during the 2023 and 2024 sessions (HB 

3395 and SB 1537). 

Approval 

Criteria: Dayton Land Use Development Code, Section 7.3.112.03, A – D. 

Exhibits: Exhibit A: Proposed code amendments with changes tracked 

Exhibit B: Published Public Notice 

I. REQUESTED ACTION

Conduct a public hearing on proposed legislative amendments to the Dayton Land Use Development Code 

(DLUDC), case file LA 2024-02. Options for action on LA 2024-02 include the following:   

A. Adopt the findings in the staff report and recommend that the City Council adopt LA 2024-02:

1. As presented / recommended by staff; or

2. As amended by the Planning Commission (indicating desired revisions).

B. Recommend that the City Council take no action on LA 2024-02.

C. Continue the public hearing, preferably to a date/time certain.

II. BACKGROUND

In 2023 the Oregon Legislature passed HB 3395 which included the following requirements applying to 

Dayton: 

• Cities between 2,500 – 10,000 residents are required to adopt ordinances to allow duplexes on any

lot zoned for residential use that allows single-family detached housing;

• Local governments are required to approve Single Room Occupancy (SRO) developments with up

to 6 units on each lot zoned for single-family detached housing;

• If the lot allows the development of 5 or more units, the SRO development must be approved up to

the number of units allowed by the underlying density standard; and

• Cities cannot apply development standards for duplexes and single room occupancies that are more

restrictive than the standards that apply to single family homes.

To assist cities in updating their ordinances to comply with the new regulation, DLCD awarded a grant to 

MWVCOG to complete these required updates to the Dayton Land Use and Development Code (DLUDC). 

11



LA 2024-02 Staff Report  Page 2 of 6 

More recently, the legislature passed SB 1537 which included additional requirements that are addressed 

in these amendments, including: 

• Requirements that local governments approve certain adjustments to local code for projects within 

a UGB that result in net new housing units; 

• Requirements that local governments approve applications for replats, property line adjustments, 

and extensions, alterations, or expansions of nonconforming land use at the administrative level 

through a limited land use procedure; 

• Removing local requirements for these application types and other limited land use decisions to 

undergo a quasi-judicial process with a public hearing. Other limited land use decisions subject to 

this requirement include subdivisions, partitions, and site design reviews. 

Additional amendments are included to address general housekeeping needs and technical corrections, and 

address compliance with other ORS provisions, primarily ORS 197A.400 requirements that a local 

government may adopt and apply only clear and objective standards, conditions, and procedures regulating 

the development of housing and that the standards, conditions, and procedure may not have the effect, either 

in themselves or cumulatively, of discouraging needed housing through unreasonable cost or delay. 

III. PROCESS  

Section 7.3.112.01 requires text amendments to the DLUDC to be approved through a Type IV review 

procedure as specified in Section 7.3.2.  

On September 12, 2024, Planning Commission held a work session to review a first draft of code 

amendments described in Section IV.  

On October 10, 2024, Planning Commission held a second work session to review a second draft of the 

code amendments and agreed to schedule the first of two required public hearings.  

On October 9, 2024, staff issued the required 35-day notice to the Department of Land Conservation and 

Development. On October 24, 2024, written notice of the hearing before the Planning Commission and 

subsequent hearing before City Council was published in the McMinnville News Register.  

The scope of the proposed text amendments associated with LA 2024-02 are included in Exhibit A and are 

shown in italic bold and strikethrough format.  

IV. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

The draft amendments in Exhibit A respond to the legislative priorities discussed above as follows: 

Siting Duplexes – ORS 197.758 

• All residential zones – All standards for siting duplexes made consistent with standards for single-

family homes. Minimum lot size requirements, design, and development standards related to the 

siting of duplexes  

Single Room Occupancies – ORS 197.286, ORS 197.314 

• Added definition of single room occupancy from ORS 197 

• Added single-room occupancies as defined in ORS 197 as a permitted use in all residential zones 

Housing Land Use Adjustments – ORS 197A 

• Section 7.3.103 Minor Variance – incorporates standards and qualifying conditions from Section 

38 of SB 1537 (2024) for approving mandatory housing adjustments so that the minor variance 

procedure can be used for submitting, reviewing, and approving these requests. 

Limited Land Use Decisions – ORS 197.195 

12



LA 2024-02 Staff Report  Page 3 of 6 

• Section 7.3.101 Summary of Application Types and Review Procedures – Makes partitions, 

subdivisions, and site development review applications Type I limited land use actions. 

• Section 7.3.202 Procedures for Type I Review – Added limited land use notice requirements to the 

Type I procedures. 

Clear and Objective Standards for Housing Applications – ORS 197A.400 

• All residential zoning sections, administrative procedures, and provisions of the DLUDC were 

reviewed to ensure applicable standards and procedures are clear and objective. 

V. FINDINGS AND APPROVAL CRITERIA 

7.3.112.01 Process 

Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code texts shall be reviewed in accordance with 

the Type IV review procedures specified in Section 7.3.201.  

7.3.112.03 Criteria for Approval 

Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or Development Code text shall be approved if the evidence can 

substantiate the following: 

A. Impact of the proposed amendment on land use and development patterns within the city, as 

measured by: 

1. Traffic generation and circulation patterns; 

Findings: The proposed amendments do not impact traffic generation and circulation patterns. Staff find 

the impact to traffic generation and circulation patterns is negligible. 

2. Demand for public facilities and services; 

Findings: The proposed amendments do not impact demand for public facilities and services. Staff find 

the impact on public facilities and services is negligible. 

3. Level of park and recreation facilities; 

Findings: The amendments do not involve changes to the uses allowed in the underlying zoning districts 

that would affect the level of service provided by existing park and recreation facilities. Staff 

find no impact to park and recreation facilities. 

4. Economic activities; 

Findings: The proposed amendments do not impact economic activities. Staff find the impact to economic 

activity is negligible.  

5. Protection and use of natural resources; 

Findings: The proposed amendments do not impact the protection and use of natural resources. Staff find 

the impact to natural resources is negligible.  

6. Compliance of the proposal with existing adopted special purpose plans or programs, such 

as public facilities improvements. 

Findings: The proposed amendments do not impact compliance with existing adopted special purpose 

plans or programs. Staff find this criterion is satisfied. 

B. A demonstrated need exists for the product of the proposed amendment. 

Findings: The need for the proposed amendments are to comply with HB 3395, SB 1537, ORS 197A.400, 

and related housekeeping items are in response to needs identified by staff and Planning 

Commission. 

13

https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.3.112.01_Process
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.3.112.03_Criteria_For_Approval


LA 2024-02 Staff Report  Page 4 of 6 

C. The proposed amendment complies with all applicable Statewide Planning Goals and 

administrative rule requirements. 

Applicable Statewide Planning Goals. 

Goal 1, Citizen Involvement. 

Findings:  A public hearing on the proposed amendments is scheduled before the Planning 

Commission on November 14, 2024, at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. and a second public hearing 

is scheduled before City Council on December 2, 2024. Public notice has been provided in 

accordance with noticing requirements in the Dayton Land Use and Development Code for 

legislative public hearings by the Planning Commission and the City Council. Goal 1 is 

satisfied. 

Goal 2. Land Use Planning. 

Findings: Goal 2 requires each local government in Oregon to have and follow a comprehensive land 

use plan and implementing regulations. These are in place. The scope of this legislative 

proposal does not involve any amendments to the Comprehensive Plan policies. Existing 

Comprehensive Plan land use map designations and base zoning designations are 

unchanged. The modifications to the uses allowed by existing zoning are made to be 

consistent with state law to lower regulatory barriers to encourage more diverse housing 

types. The proposal does not involve exceptions to the Statewide Goals. Staff finds Goal 2 

is satisfied. 

Goal 3 & 4. Agricultural Lands and Forest Lands 

Findings:  Goal 3 and 4 primarily pertain to rural areas, typically outside urban areas. Staff finds Goals 

3 and 4 to be not applicable due to the limited scope of the proposed text amendments.  

Goal 5. Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces. 

Findings:  Staff observe how the proposed amendments do not impact natural resources or open 

spaces. Staff incorporate the scope of work description above in response to Goal 2. This 

amendment proposal does not add, subtract, or modify the list / description of historic 

resources identified in the Historical Property Overlay Zone. Staff find that Goal 5 is 

satisfied. 

Goal 6. Air, Water and Land Resources Quality. 

Findings: The proposal does not address Goal 6 resources. Based on the limited scope of proposed 

text amendments, staff find Goal 6 to be not applicable. 

Goal 7. Areas Subject to Natural Hazards. 

Findings: The proposal does not address Goal 7 resources. Based on the limited scope of the proposed 

text amendments, staff finds Goal 7 to be not applicable.  

Goal 8. Recreation Needs. 

Findings:  The proposal does not address Goal 8 resources. Based on the limited scope of work 

included in this report staff finds Goal 8 to be not applicable.  

Goal 9. Economic Development. 

Findings: Proposed amendments do not change the permitted employment uses in employment zones 

or impact identified future employment areas identified through past Economic 

Opportunities Analysis. Accordingly, staff find that Goal 9 does not apply.  

Goal 10. Housing. 

14



LA 2024-02 Staff Report  Page 5 of 6 

Findings: The amendment proposal responds to statute and rule changes introduced via housing bills 

(HB 3395 and SB 1537). These bills were adopted during the 2023 and 2024 legislative 

sessions. HB 3395 introduces Single Room Occupancy (SROs) as a new residential type. 

SROs and duplexes are now to be permitted in residential zones (applicable to all local 

jurisdictions with population of 2,500 and greater) using standards and procedures that are 

no more restrictive than standards that apply to single family development. Staff therefore 

conclude the amendment proposal to conform with Goal 10. 

Goal 11. Public Facilities and Services. 

Findings: Public facilities under Goal 11 include water, sanitary sewer, police, and fire protection. 

Other services (e.g., heath, communication services) are also listed in Goal 11. The 

proposed amendments do not have any direct impact on any of the master planning 

documents required under Goal 11. The proposed amendments are consistent with Goal 

11.  

Goal 12. Transportation. 

Findings: The proposed amendments to the DLUDC do not involve changes or amendments to local 

transportation requirements or road classifications. Goal 12 is met. 

Goal 13. Energy Conservation. 

Findings:  Based on the limited scope of work described in this report, staff finds Goal 13 to be not 

applicable. 

Goal 14. Urbanization. 

Findings: Based on the limited scope of the text amendments described in this report, staff finds Goal 

14 to be not applicable. No change to the existing Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) is 

proposed. 

Goal 15 for the Willamette River Greenway and Goals 16 – 19 for the Coastal Goals. 

Findings: Staff observe Goals 15 through 19 to apply only to specific regions of the state (Willamette 

River Greenway, Estuarine Resources, Coastal Shorelands, Beaches and Dunes, Ocean 

Resources). Goals 15 – 19 do not apply because the city is not on the Willamette River or 

in a coastal area.  

The proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals. This 

criterion is met. 

D. The amendment is appropriate as measured by at least one of the following criteria: 

1. It corrects identified error(s) in the provisions of the plan. 

2. It represents a logical implementation of the plan. 

3. It is mandated by changes in federal, state, or local law. 

4. It is otherwise deemed by the council to be desirable, appropriate, and proper. 

Findings: As discussed throughout this Staff Report, the amendment is mandated by changes to state law- 

HB 3395 and SB 1537, and to comply with existing policies in ORS 197A.400 requiring clear 

and objective standards for housing applications. Staff find this criterion is met. 

VI.  PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION – Sample Motion 

A Planning Commissioner may make a motion to either: 

15



LA 2024-02 Staff Report Page 6 of 6 

1. Adopt the staff report and recommend the City Council approve the amendments. A sample

motion is:

I move the Planning Commission adopt the staff report and recommend the City Council

approve the amendments.

2. Adopt a revised staff report with changes by the Planning Commission and recommend the

City Council approve the revised amendments. A sample motion is:

I move the Planning Commission adopt a revised staff report with the following

revisions…state the revisions…and recommend the City Council approve the revised

amendments.

3. Recommend the City Council deny the proposed amendments. A sample motion is:

I move the Planning Commission recommend the City Council deny the proposed

amendments for the following reasons…and state the reasons for the denial.

‘ 4. Continue the hearing to a date/time certain. A sample motion is:

I move the Planning Commission to continue the hearing to a date (state the date) and time

(state the time) to obtain additional information and state the information to be obtained.

16



7.1.200.03 Definitions 

The following words and phrases, when used in this Code, shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in this Section: 

Density: The number of dwellings units per acre of land. “Land” includes all property within an 
“area” as defined in this section. 

Density: • 

Gross Density or Units per Gross Acre: The number of dwelling units or lots per acre prior 
to calculation of net density. •  

Net Density or Units per Net Acre: The number of dwelling units or lots per acre based on 
net area, which is the area of a parcel or tract that excludes land dedicated for public rights-
of-way or stormwater easements, common open space, land dedicated for public parks, 
flood plains, and unbuildable natural areas. Density shall be calculated using lots or units 
per net acre unless a specific standard specifies otherwise. 

Middle Housing: Duplexes, triplexes, quadplexes, cottage clusters, townhouses, and single room 
occupancies. 

Short-Term Rental, Owner Occupied: A single or two-family dwelling where the owner resides and 
rents no more than three guest rooms in a single dwelling to overnight guests for a period less than 
30 consecutive days. The owner occupies the primary dwelling during the overnight rental period. 
The room (s) for rent may include rooms within an accessory dwelling unit or attached duplex. 

Single Room Occupancy: A residential development with no fewer than four attached units that 
are independently rented and lockable and provide living and sleeping space for the exclusive use 
of an occupant, but require that the occupant share sanitary or food preparation facilities with other 
units in the occupancy. 

Site, Development, or Complex: A group of structures or other development that is functionally or 
conceptually integrated, regardless of the ownership pattern of the development or underlying 
land. 

EXHIBIT A

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

50



1 

Legislative Amendment Proposal, City Case File LA 2024-02  

NOTICE of PUBLIC HEARINGS before the PLANNING COMMISSION and the CITY COUNCIL 

to consider proposed changes to the Dayton Land Use and Development Code 

The City of Dayton will hold public hearings on Thursday November 14, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. (before the 
Planning Commission) and on Monday, December 2, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. (before City Council) regarding 
the adoption of proposed updates to the Dayton Municipal Code under city case file LA 2024-02 that apply 
citywide. 

The recommendation by the Planning Commission and decision by the City Council shall be based on 
consideration of the approval criteria under Dayton Municipal Code 7.3.112.03.  

Proposed code changes are available for inspection at Dayton City Hall located at 416 Ferry Street, Dayton, 
OR 97114 at no cost, and available for purchase at a reasonable cost.  More information about LA 2024-
01 is available by contacting Rocio Vargas, City Recorder, at 503-864-2221 / rvargas@daytonoregon.gov 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING 

The Planning Commission conducts the first public hearing to consider making a recommendation to the 
City Council to adopt the proposed amendments.   

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING: Thursday, November 14, 2024 

TIME:  6:30 p.m. 

PLACE:  Dayton City Hall Annex 
408 Ferry Street 
Dayton, OR 97114 

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 

If the Planning Commission makes a recommendation on the date above, the City Council conducts a 
second public hearing to consider adopting the proposed amendments, based upon the Planning 
Commission recommendations and in receipt of public testimony. 

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING:  Monday, December 2, 2024 

TIME:  6:30 p.m.  

PLACE:  Dayton City Hall Annex 
408 Ferry Street 
Dayton, OR 97114 

51


	11-14-2024 Agenda 
	11-14-2024 Packet
	1 - 06-13-2024 Minutes
	2 - 09-12-2024 Work Session Minutes
	3 - 10-10-2024 Work Session
	4 - LA 2024-02_11.8.2024 PC SR
	5 - EX A Proposed amendments w_changes tracked
	6 - EX B LA 2024-02 Public Notice




